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          1  FIRE DEPARTMENT/EMS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Good morning,

          3  Commissioner. We are hearing the budget testimony

          4  from Fire Commissioner Thomas Von Essen.

          5                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Good morning.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Good morning.

          7                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Thank you.

          8                 Our Fiscal Year 2000 Executive

          9  operating budget provides over $1 billion to enable

         10  us to continue our missions of fire suppression,

         11  pre-hospital emergency medical care, fire prevention

         12  and education, arson investigation and

         13  administrative and support services.

         14                 Significant changes in the Executive

         15  Budget from the Preliminary Budget released in

         16  January, include:

         17                 1) Funding to support part-time CUNY

         18  students working in the fire safety education unit

         19  to serve as speakers for community events, at the

         20  same time we will provide mentorship for those

         21  student employees for a possible career in the fire

         22  service.

         23                 2) Funding for emergency repair work

         24  at our EMS Maspeth facility. As you know, a

         25  watermain break was the likely cause of a serious
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          2  structural stability and integrity to our EMS

          3  dispatch center and ambulance repair unit.

          4                 While City emergency efforts have

          5  appeared to stabilize the problem, we are

          6  understandably concerned with the continued

          7  viability of our EMS dispatch operations.

          8                 Therefore, the Department has leased

          9  trailer facilities and made appropriate

         10  telecommunications changes to ensure operations at

         11  the trailer until such time as we can relocate to

         12  leased space, as noted in my testimony last week.

         13                 We have also developed another

         14  back-up option at each of the Fire dispatch centers

         15  to enabled the continued operation of our EMS

         16  dispatch operations in case of a significant

         17  downtime issue at the Maspeth trailer.

         18                 3) Our OTPS budget has also been

         19  enhanced with 400,000 for refurbishment of ladders

         20  that may face structural integrity issues without

         21  such intervention.

         22                 Four ladders will be completed as

         23  immediate projects with additional funds to support,

         24  if necessary, between four and six ladders annually.

         25                 Funding of 400,000 for replacement
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          2  defibrillator battery charges for ambulance stations

          3  and firehouses will be provided to maintain the

          4  viability of this life-saving equipment.

          5                 Moreover, 200,000 has been improved

          6  to increase our pharmaceutical funding based on

          7  protocol changes approved by REMSCO.

          8                 4) Y2K funding for additional

          9  enhancement to the starfire remediation effort have

         10  also been approved.

         11                 As I noted last week this system

         12  remediation, along with all other MIS-related

         13  projects will be completed in July.

         14                 5) Budgetary savings include several

         15  civilization programs, public/private partnerships

         16  and MIS activities and technological funding

         17  increases to offset staffing requirements.

         18                 Next year my major priorities will be

         19  continued development of initiatives to improve

         20  workforce diversity in the uniformed force, a

         21  continuation of our efforts to further expand fire

         22  safety education programs upon our successes in

         23  fatal fire -- built upon our successes in fatal fire

         24  reductions.

         25                 To maintain our commitment to
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          2  improving EMS response times, particularly through

          3  the establishment of new ambulance stations, to

          4  ensure the effectiveness of our emergency responders

          5  through training initiatives, completion of

          6  Y2K-related efforts and the relocation of our

          7  computer center to Brooklyn, move to the design

          8  stage of the fire dispatch office renovation project

          9  and Fort Totten,  relocation of the EMS dispatch

         10  center to a new facility.

         11                 Reengineering of our fire prevention

         12  inspectional program to provide more efficient

         13  service to building owners and tenants and continued

         14  improvements to our firehouse infrastructure via

         15  design-build projects.

         16                 As always, the Department appreciates

         17  the support of the Council for these efforts and

         18  looks forward to a continued partnership.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 I want to first look at the emergency

         23  work at the EMS facility. The budget that was

         24  developed obviously was developed prior to

         25  determining the full extent of the damaged. In your
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          2  estimate do you see the cost rising? And what would

          3  be an early estimate of its cost?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: The

          5  cost will rise because the work was in progress

          6  while we were conducting some of the initial

          7  stabilization.

          8                 The move to a leased facility will be

          9  an increased expenditure, which I believe we have

         10  already requested funds for, and ultimately the

         11  remediation of that building itself will be a

         12  question that will require a little more research by

         13  design and construction people to determine whether

         14  remediation of that building makes more sense than

         15  constructing a new facility and combining some of

         16  our other operations.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: At the capital

         18  hearing, you indicated that the communication center

         19  would be moved to Metrotech eventually?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: Yes,

         21  that's correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Now you have the

         23  trailers outside of the existing facility, do you

         24  know whether you are going to move into the building

         25  or prior to the move to Metrotech? What is the
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          2  sequence?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: Our

          4  plan now is to keep the trailers in operation for 90

          5  to 180 days, until the lease and the set-up can be

          6  completed at One Metrotech. We will move the entire

          7  operation to Metrotech into leased space until the

          8  five borough renovation is done, and then all of the

          9  EMS facilities will be distributed at the five

         10  borough locations for redundancy.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: You mentioned in

         12  your testimony, Commissioner, 200,000 has been

         13  improved to increase our pharmaceutical funding,

         14  what is that?

         15                 It is on page four.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH:

         17  Assistant Commissioner Steve Brush.

         18                 Each year we review with REMSCO,

         19  which is a regional manager on health issues,

         20  changes in protocols for administration of drugs by

         21  paramedics and this is additional money provided in

         22  the budget for that protocol change.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

         24  Robles.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Picking up on
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          2  the Chairman's question, this Committee, that is in

          3  essence a mandate, isn't it? So you have to do it,

          4  it is not that --

          5                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay. I just

          7  wanted to make sure, because that is why now we have

          8  joint jurisdiction over EMS, the Health Committee

          9  and this Committee, and I know, maybe not the Chair,

         10  but sometimes things are put upon you as a mandate

         11  and then you have to provide the means, so I just

         12  want to be clear.

         13                 I do want to pick up on some of the

         14  things you said here, especially within the EMS.

         15                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: I just want

         16  to make sure you understand, there is one piece of

         17  it that wasn't a mandate, the asthma, with the

         18  albuterol, with us doing that training and

         19  implementing that, that was not a mandate.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: No, I know

         21  that.

         22                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: The others

         23  are. Yes, I just wanted to be clear.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And I thank

         25  you for reminding me.
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          2                 Let me personally thank you, because

          3  sometimes some of us at this end, if we go through

          4  hearings, whether it is the preliminary hearing or

          5  this hearing or doing oversight hearings, as a

          6  member of the Health Committee there was an issue,

          7  actually the Public Safety Committee, I raised it

          8  with you about the asthma, that whole theory.

          9                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And apparently

         11  you listened, and you implemented without having

         12  anybody tell you how to do it, so I want to commend

         13  you on that, and I appreciate that and that is why I

         14  guess you and I have a fantastic relationship

         15  because I can pick up the phone and talk to you and

         16  that is the kind of relationship that I think this

         17  Committee and my Committee is going to have with you

         18  when it comes to EMS, and I wanted to say that.

         19                 So, having said that, because that

         20  was one of the areas, right now are all of our --

         21  one, do we have enough EMS ambulances out, equipped,

         22  fully equipped so that if New York is called upon,

         23  the 9-1-1 for emergency, we have the means to

         24  respond?

         25                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: You mean on
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          2  the street today?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Yes.

          4                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And each of

          6  those ambulances are fully equipped?

          7                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

          9                 Let me ask you, in terms of this

         10  dispatch center that you are having problems with

         11  and you say you are looking for a new place, did I

         12  hear you say --

         13                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: We have

         14  actually found a place. That is at One Metrotech.

         15  What we have done temporarily, as Commissioner

         16  Fitzpatrick mentioned for three months or six

         17  months, depending on how long it takes us to get

         18  this thing going, is set up a modern hi-tech trailer

         19  set-up outside of the old building. We are concerned

         20  it may have to be torn down.

         21                 We don't want to go back into it at

         22  all. We are going to move into Metrotech and that

         23  will be for a couple of years until we finish the

         24  five COs, communication officers, we are updating

         25  the fire side and we will bring the EMS into those
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          2  five COs, do it borough, the way we do the fire

          3  side, and then we will have redundancy in each

          4  borough for another borough that might break down.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, while I

          6  welcome you moving into Brooklyn, as a Brooklynite,

          7  and especially Metrotech, that is a leasing --

          8                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And I am

         10  assuming that the cost to lease is an expense; why

         11  are we moving into Metrotech and not considering

         12  building a new facility, which I believe in the long

         13  run will be less costly and plus it becomes our

         14  facility rather than leasing.

         15                 And let me just say, again, I

         16  volunteer the fact that as we did with the EMS

         17  station at Woodhull Hospital, Woodhull Hospital

         18  still has enough land that I believe I will welcome

         19  a communication center or at least an EMS facility

         20  in North Brooklyn. And there, as you know it is City

         21  property so there must be a reason why, because I

         22  guess it is immediate, but I am simply saying,

         23  wouldn't it be better to look at building a

         24  facility?

         25                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: We looked at
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          2  that, and it is always nice to have your own

          3  facility and modernize it or build it from scratch

          4  and have something that is hi-tech.

          5                 We will have that with the five COs.

          6                 What we want to have, and EMS did not

          7  have when they were with HHC, they did not have a

          8  back-up. There was no back-up system. We think you

          9  just can't function without a back-up.

         10                 We believe that the fire back-up is

         11  the way to go.

         12                 Having each borough that is capable

         13  of picking up if Brooklyn breaks down, and Manhattan

         14  can pick it up, or Manhattan whatever, you have that

         15  redundancy, so there is an advantage to having the

         16  five COs. We think that long-term we are better off

         17  having five than we are with having one new one, and

         18  the cost is not cheaper short-term certainly for

         19  leasing for a couple of years than it would be to

         20  build a new building. And we know we can get with

         21  all of the bureaucracy and difficulties in doing

         22  anything, we believe we can get in this building in

         23  three to six months, whereas we know we could not

         24  build a new facility in that time.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Now, you keep
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          2  referring to five COs; have you also identified

          3  where in each of these boroughs you will have these

          4  COs?

          5                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Those are

          6  already there. Those are our old five Fire

          7  Department Communication Offices. They are existing.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

          9                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: In each

         10  borough. So, we don't have to get the land, we don't

         11  have to go through ULURP, we don't have to go

         12  through community boards. All we have got to do is

         13  modernize those five buildings that we already own,

         14  which is in itself a big  deal.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: So, just to

         16  make sure I understand it. In Brooklyn, you are

         17  referring to the one near Prospect Park?

         18                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

         20                 The other thing you mentioned about

         21  ladders, companies of which there is a maintenance

         22  in terms of a ladder and you have a series of them,

         23  can you provide the Committee with those companies

         24  that  --

         25                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Sure.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Phase one or

          3  whatever it is?

          4                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Sure.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  I am assuming

          6  you are talking about all of them.

          7                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: But you are

          9  not doing all of them, not with -- I think you said

         10  $400,000.

         11                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: No, they

         12  don't all have to be done right away.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Can you

         14  provide this Committee with which are those that you

         15  are going to begin with and what is the timetable so

         16  that those --

         17                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes, you can

         18  have that. I will give it to you next week.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: While you are

         22  providing information, can you provide the addresses

         23  of the five COs?

         24                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: So that the
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          2  members will know where they are.

          3                 Council Member Provenzano.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          5                 CO in the Bronx, is that Jacobi?

          6                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: No.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Where is

          8  our CO in the Bronx?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: Bronx

         10  Park. They are all in parks. It is 180th and Bronx

         11  Park. They are all located in parks, Prospect Park,

         12  Bronx Park --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, ours

         14  is where?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: 180th and

         16  Boston Road. It is the south end of the zoo.

         17                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: See, it's a

         18  secret. We keep them all secret. It's a well kept

         19  secret.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: They were

         21  really built in parks so they wouldn't be affected

         22  by fires in adjacent structures, in Central Park,

         23  Prospect Park, Forest Park.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Would you please

         25  identify yourself.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: I am

          3  sorry. Deputy Commissioner Feehan.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay, that

          5  wasn't my initial question. That just arose from

          6  Victor's question.

          7                 The fire safety education. I noticed,

          8  Commissioner, that you mentioned about funding to

          9  support part-time CUNY students, and then I see that

         10  you have 750,000 included in the budget for, I

         11  imagine it is expanding on the existing fire safety

         12  programs you have. Could you just, you know --

         13                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN; we are trying

         14  to figure out ways to get young City residents and a

         15  large portion of hopefully minority City residents

         16  into a program where we can give them jobs, like a

         17  cadet program. But with all of our difficulty in

         18  having an initial firefighters' exam so seldomly, it

         19  is every four or five years, it is hard to have a

         20  cadet program with no end to it.

         21                 If you have a cadet program and it is

         22  for six months, you can maintain that interest and

         23  you don't have to give those people a job, then

         24  there is an exam for them and they take it and they

         25  move into the Department. That is one of the
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          2  advantages the PD has, they have the exam so often,

          3  they hire so often.

          4                 We don't have that, so we are trying

          5  to, like we did the last time, develop a cadet and

          6  then bring them into the Department through EMS as

          7  EMTs, which we have a greater turnover and we do

          8  more hiring.

          9                 So, we are hoping to try also to do

         10  that with fire safety education. We thought if we

         11  could get young people who were interested in the

         12  Fire Department, we could bring them in as fire

         13  safety educators, to go out, they could relate, they

         14  are young, go out to the schools and different

         15  communities and talk to people or children about

         16  fire safety education, give them jobs and then they

         17  could finish college, they could then take

         18  promotional exams, like we have done with EMS coming

         19  into fire, hopefully then having the fire exam more

         20  often, every two years, instead of every four or

         21  five, then there would be something in front of them

         22  that they might be able to as a goal get into the

         23  department. Then there would be something in front

         24  of them that they might be able to, as a goal, get

         25  into the Department quicker, and we could do a
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          2  better job of getting a more diverse workforce. It

          3  is just another thing that we thought we could try.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: It sounds

          5  like an excellent program to me. And I would like to

          6  say, and I am sure my colleagues would agree, if

          7  there is any way we could help, either reaching out

          8  to colleges, you know, seniors in high schools.

          9                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Okay.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I

         11  certainly would be willing to help. I it sounds like

         12  a wonderful program.

         13                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I also

         15  have a question on Medicare compliance.

         16                 There is a proposal for hiring an

         17  additional seven personnel in order to ensure

         18  compliance with federal Medicare regulations. I

         19  don't understand that at all.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH:

         21  Basically we are in an agreement with the Health

         22  Care Finance Administration. We have provided

         23  additional staff to make sure that the review for

         24  claims that are being submitted for ambulance

         25  transports are appropriate, because Medicare has a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  FIRE DEPARTMENT/EMS

          2  standard of medical necessity that must be met. So,

          3  the Office of Management and Budget has agreed with

          4  our need to fund additional positions in various

          5  bureaus throughout the Department to meet that

          6  requirement.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Very good.

          8                 I thank you very much.

          9                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: You are

         10  welcome.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: How many

         12  ambulance tours do you expect to increase in Fiscal

         13  Year 2000?

         14                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: We don't have

         15  plans in increasing tours.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, you are

         17  adding additional ambulances.

         18                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: The

         19  ambulances you are talking about adding are new

         20  ambulances, the vehicle itself that replaces an old

         21  ambulance.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: All right.

         23                 Council Member Robles.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I think my

         25  colleague asked my question, so I will yield.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: We have been

          3  joined by Council Member Ronnie Eldridge, and she

          4  has a question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:

          6  Commissioner, I would like to know the retirement

          7  rate in the Fire Department and EMS. How many

          8  firefighters retire each year?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH:

         10  Approximately 500 firefighters per year, and EMT

         11  ranks probably about 150. Most of those are

         12  resignations --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I'm sorry, I

         14  couldn't --

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH: On the

         16  EMS side of the operation, we don't have as many

         17  retirements, but the attrition turnover is about 150

         18  per year.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, then,

         20  that means you hire 500 new firefighters every year?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH: That's

         22  correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         24                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: You are

         25  welcome.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Can I also

          3  ask one question of people in my district who are

          4  always asking?

          5                 On EMS calls, do you keep how many of

          6  those calls are responded to first by the

          7  firefighters?

          8                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: What are

         10  those numbers?

         11                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: There is

         12  approximately 130,000, 140,000 -- 156,000 calls by

         13  fire engines, in addition to the roughly one million

         14  calls done by the ambulances.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And what

         16  determines it, just who is closest?

         17                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: No, the

         18  degree of severity of the call. If it is a segment

         19  one, segment one we try to get a C-FRD engine going

         20  immediately, and then the ambulance is also going

         21  immediately but sometimes it is a quicker response

         22  by the engines because they are more spread out

         23  throughout the City because they have more

         24  availability, so the engine might get there in four

         25  minutes, the ambulance might get there in six, it is
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          2  just something that, you know, where they can

          3  supplement the ambulance. So, it depends on the

          4  degree of the injury or the call itself. We don't

          5  send the engines to everything. The ambulance calls

          6  are broken down in segments one to eight.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

          9  Oddo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chairman.

         12                 Commissioner, admittedly this is sort

         13  of a whacky question to start out with, but in light

         14  of the commuter tax shanagans, is there a way that

         15  your Department can put a dollar amount on the

         16  services, whether they be fire or EMS, to non-city

         17  residents?

         18                 Is there any way of estimating how

         19  much we are spending as a City in providing those

         20  types of services to those folks?

         21                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: I don't know

         22  how you could, unless you started asking if we get a

         23  call today to the -- I was going to say the Pan Am

         24  building, I am showing my age, but the Metropolitan

         25  Life Building in Manhattan, and someone has a heart
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          2  attack on the 30th floor, and the engines go and the

          3  ambulances go and they take care of the person, you

          4  know, if we actually looked at his address and to

          5  see if he is a commuter from upstate and then should

          6  we give him -- what if it is a tourist, what if it

          7  is someone who is here from California, should we

          8  bill him more or should we -- I don't know where

          9  that would go.

         10                 I don't think we could, I don't know

         11  if we should.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The Staten

         13  Island Advance recently, as was sort of the genesis

         14  of my question the last time about perhaps the

         15  additional need for -- the need for an additional

         16  ladder company; this past week there was an

         17  editorial about the decision to take away one of the

         18  fireboats from  Staten Island and move it out into

         19  either Queens or Brooklyn, could you just explain to

         20  me the thinking behind that decision?

         21                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: It is a

         22  little bit misleading, the way it was presented.

         23                 It is not really one of the

         24  fireboats, we have our largest fireboat that is

         25  stationed in Staten Island, we only have three real
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          2  fireboats in operation now, one is in Brooklyn Navy

          3  Yard, one is on 14th Street in Manhattan and one is

          4  in Staten Island.

          5                 In addition to that, a few years ago

          6  we put some small Boston Whalers in operation

          7  throughout the City that are meant for small

          8  problems with pleasure boats and people that might

          9  be fishing in calm waters and try to just give them

         10  some assistance. The one that we put in Staten

         11  Island, we found that the waters over there are very

         12  rough as compared to where the other locations are.

         13  That decision was based on a safety issue for the

         14  firefighters. We had found that there had been about

         15  50 percent more injuries in that boat than there

         16  were in  the others, they were manned just during

         17  the season, from May I think to September, just in a

         18  boating season.

         19                 So, we just decided that it wasn't

         20  being used the way we had intended it, there really

         21  wasn't a need for it because of the large boats over

         22  in that area that are handled by our biggest

         23  fireboat, and we thought we would take it out of

         24  there before someone was seriously hurt and wasn't

         25  really, like I say wasn't really doing what I
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          2  thought it would.

          3                 It was not intended to, the way it

          4  was projected was it was being relocated to Queens,

          5  which always then becomes a political issue. It

          6  wasn't being relocated to Queens.

          7                 We decided, since we didn't want to

          8  use it over there, we would then use it somewhere

          9  else to just give a little bit bigger boat to the

         10  other area, but that wasn't the case.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Can you just

         12  give me an estimate on how many jobs those boats go

         13  on a year?

         14                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: I don't have

         15  that information with me.  We think it is a valuable

         16  service. We don't think it was being utilized as

         17  much as it should over in Staten Island, based on

         18  the injuries, and the fact it wasn't really

         19  accomplishing what we wanted. I can get you the

         20  numbers, though.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: One last

         22  question. In terms of the EMS budget, what

         23  percentage, if you can break it down, of that budget

         24  is revenue-generated by EMS and how much is then --

         25  the additional is the subsidy I guess from the City?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH: EMS

          3  transports generate approximately $80 million in

          4  revenue per year.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And is that out

          6  of a potential 100 million, 200 million? I mean, are

          7  we collecting --

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH:

          9  Basically we should be recovering our cost, we don't

         10  cover anywhere near our costs for a number of

         11  reasons.

         12                 Number one, Medicaid is based on a

         13  strict reimbursement formula agreed to by the State

         14  and HHC many years ago. And then the other reason is

         15  Medicare only pays a certain amount of money

         16  regardless of what we bill them. So, Medicare will

         17  say, we may say the bill is $350 and Medicare says

         18  we are paying 250, so we lose money there. And then

         19  there is of course the non-payers who just can't

         20  collect --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Is there a

         22  percentage that we know of how much we are

         23  collecting? Like are we at 20 percent, 30 percent,

         24  10 percent?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH: We are
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          2  probably at 50 percent.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Fifty?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Following up on

          7  that question, what kind of relationship does the

          8  Department continue to maintain with the Health and

          9  Hospital Corporation with regard to the billing for

         10  services?

         11                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Our

         12  relationship is fine. I will let Steve Rush talk

         13  about the billing relationship.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH: As of

         15  April we have assumed all of the billing, all of the

         16  EMS transports. At one time HHC was doing the

         17  billing for transports to municipal hospitals and

         18  now we have taken over that role as well.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: So you do

         20  voluntary as well as --

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH: No, we

         22  just do for our ambulances.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay.

         24                 Council Member Eldridge.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I read some
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          2  place about your recruitment for people of color and

          3  I guess women; how much do you spend on that? Did I

          4  read that you have $250,000?

          5                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: No. The

          6  $250,000 was just what we had spent the last couple

          7  of months on the advertising campaign. The budget

          8  that is spent over the course of the three or four

          9  years beforehand is mostly in manpower, people that

         10  work in our fire recruitment effort.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So how much

         12  do you spend on recruitment?

         13                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: The personal

         14  service part of it with employees is about $750,000.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But what

         16  interests me is that we just approved in a budget

         17  mod $10 million to assist the police in their

         18  recruitment. Fortunately we don't have the same

         19  urgency, but certainly the desirability and the goal

         20  of hiring more people of color in the Fire

         21  Department, so shouldn't we be spending more money?

         22  Or are they spending too much money? I don't want

         23  you to comment on it.

         24                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: I got enough

         25  problems of my own, whether or not I should decide
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          2  whether or not they are spending too much money, I

          3  think that --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But you are

          5  talking about to replace 500 firefighters, they are

          6  talking about $10 million for a class of 1,500, so

          7  it seems to me somewhere --

          8                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: I don't think

          9  they are talking about $10 million for a class of

         10  1,500. They are talking about $10 million over a

         11  several year period to raise the level of

         12  recruiting.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Well, the

         14  urgency of the budget mod was for the list, for the

         15  tests being given in September for the class that

         16  they want to move up.

         17                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: We think that

         18  one of our biggest obstacles is the fact that we

         19  test so infrequently. The PD can go out of their way

         20  to recruit for an exam that is six months from now

         21  because they do so much more hiring. They have so

         22  many more tests and turnover and people coming on

         23  and off the job that we have. We are trying to

         24  overcome that in different ways. I think the

         25  spending a few dollars more will be helpful. I think
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          2  if we can get this exam up closer, we can spend more

          3  money that year beforehand. We are trying to do a

          4  better job of getting to the kids at a younger age,

          5  making them understand that it is a great job, and

          6  we just have to attack it that way.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Why do you

          8  test more infrequently?

          9                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: It has always

         10  been that way. I think that it has been a personnel

         11  procedure to save money because we hire so few that

         12  there is no reason, and we have so many people in

         13  the past that we have never had a problem getting

         14  people to take our exam.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, how long

         16  is the person on a list?

         17                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: And our

         18  physical knocks out a lot of people, whereas the PD

         19  really doesn't have a physical.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But am I

         21  wrong in assuming if you have 500 retirements, you

         22  hire 500 people a year?

         23                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes, we hire

         24  between 500 and 600 a year. That is not a lot. You

         25  know, I mean it is a lot for Fire Departments around
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          2  the country, when I tell people --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: No, but I

          4  mean in comparison, if we had one police class a

          5  year, if we had 1,5000 people retiring and 1,500

          6  replacements, it is comparable; how long does the

          7  list last? How often do you test?

          8                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: It can last a

          9  year but it has always been four and five years.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Four or five

         11  years.

         12                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: There has

         13  always been delays on -- our physical historically

         14  has been a nightmare, lawsuits and everything else.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Right. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Following up on

         19  that question, because it is in a word dismal

         20  representation of minorities in the Fire Department,

         21  you mentioned a couple of times because your tests

         22  are so spaced out in terms of time, are you

         23  suggesting that we look at the possibility of

         24  accelerating examinations? Could the recruitment

         25  sustain that?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes. I am

          3  really more than suggesting it. I have gone to DCAS

          4  and I have gone to the Mayor and we are working on

          5  doing a two-year exam. We are starting to plan for

          6  the next exam before we even have the physical for

          7  this exam.

          8                 We think that it will help, only,

          9  though, if we couple it with what we talked about

         10  before, trying to get people more involved maybe

         11  through a cadet program in some ways and a constant

         12  recruiting effort.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: That is one way.

         14  What about direct recruiting into those communities

         15  that you want to attract?

         16                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes. Well, we

         17  do that now, but I think that we just lose interest

         18  when you go -- when you talk to somebody, you give

         19  them information, you give them a phone number and

         20  you tell them, you know, start studying, the test is

         21  three years away.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

         23  Provenzano.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I have a

         25  question but I wanted to comment on Council Member
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          2  Oddo's question asking you to if it was possible to

          3  put a figure on services to people out of the City;

          4  correct me if I am wrong but I think it was more

          5  than  -- I don't think he meant bill these people, I

          6  think it was rather to get some idea of the cost of

          7  providing services to our commuters so that we can

          8   --

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH: Well, in

         10  light of the discussion going on about the commuter

         11  tax, I wanted to put some numbers behind our

         12  argument that we are providing them with great

         13  services.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Exactly,

         15  right. Okay.

         16                 My question, fireboat. And I know all

         17  I have to do is say that and you all know exactly

         18  what I am going to talk about. City Island, summer

         19  is coming, we have, you know, great boating

         20  community there and in the Throggsneck area, so my

         21  question is, what measures will be taken this season

         22  for safety in that area?

         23                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Actually that

         24  is an area where the small boat has worked and has

         25  been, we think very safe for the firefighters and
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          2  beneficial to the community, and we have every

          3  intention of having it again this year.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

          5                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: We have the

          6  people, though, stationed at Fort Totten, so they

          7  will then come across to City Island. The boat will

          8  be operating in the City Island area, as it has in

          9  the past.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         11                 And how long is that trip? I mean --

         12                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: A couple of

         13  minutes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: A couple

         15  of minutes?

         16                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Well, more

         17  than a couple of minutes. About 15 minutes. It's not

         18  far.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay. So

         20  that that remains the way it has been?

         21                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes.

         22                 This is a patroling boat, it doesn't

         23  sit anywhere and wait, it just keeps moving all day.

         24  It is just a daytime operation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Now, is
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          2  that there only in the summertime, or is it there --

          3                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes, just for

          4  the boating season.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: From what,

          6  May until?

          7                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: I think it is

          8  May until September or October. It is like the

          9  summer season, Memorial Day to Labor Day, basically.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         11  Thanks very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

         13  Robles.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Commissioner,

         15  my colleagues are raising it, and this is before the

         16  dilemma of Albany and this commuter tax syndrome, in

         17  the Public Safety Committee, when you used to report

         18  to them, this issue was raised, not in terms of how

         19  it was raised but let me just bring it up again. So

         20  I will change the question around.

         21                 Is it still correct that the City of

         22  New York and the Fire Department provides fire

         23  services, not only for New Jersey, but anyone who

         24  happens to touch or near the coastal waters of

         25  within the City of New York so that if we are going
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          2  upstate New York, whatever other states might border

          3  that where it comes close to New York, but the

          4  Hudson is very simple, across the river is New

          5  Jersey, but we do provide fire services when called

          6  upon by those states, correct?

          7                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And we do not

          9  get reimbursed for that?

         10                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: No.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Now, the

         12  question then should be, how many times must we

         13  respond across the river so this way we know how

         14  much it is costing us so that if the argument of the

         15  commuter tax, which is not in New Jersey, although

         16  now the Governor is saying, and Connecticut, oh,

         17  wait, wait, wait, this is not just Long Island

         18  because of political purposes, I think the question

         19  fairly should be, how much is it costing us to

         20  provide fire services to someone other than the City

         21  of New York?

         22                 Now, if you don't have that answer,

         23  since the questions were asked, maybe we should

         24  start looking at how many times we get calls to

         25  respond across the river?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: We did. We

          3  did already, Victor, and we didn't think it was

          4  enough really to make a big issue out of it.

          5                 What we really do with Jersey is

          6  provide a fireboat once in awhile. Sometimes they

          7  will have an operation near there, in one of their

          8  refineries or some place off their coast and they

          9  will ask for help because they have a fire they

         10  can't put out from the land. They have good Fire

         11  Departments over there, they have good fire service.

         12  The fireboat is what they are missing. We will take

         13  the fireboat from Staten Island because it has got

         14  real heavy guns, water capability of pumping water,

         15  send it over there to help them out. And we look at

         16  it, and it is not worth, we don't think, making an

         17  issue out of it.

         18                 Once in awhile also we will go to

         19  Yonkers, if they have a fire that they can't put out

         20  we will send some units from the Bronx up there.

         21                 Last year we were going to bill them

         22  for an operation that we did help them out, we

         23  looked at it and we decided not to.

         24                 I don't think it is going to be

         25  significant enough to get into this battle with that
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          2  issue. We can do it if you want, but I don't think

          3  it is significant enough.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I just raised

          5  it because this is an issue that has been brought

          6  before a previous committee, not in terms of what is

          7  happening now, but we stumbled upon the fact that

          8  there is this, I don't know, it is written, but it

          9  is unwritten agreement that we do provide fire

         10  services to New Jersey or anywhere where we are

         11  called, close to the City of New York.

         12                 Okay, thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Any other

         14  questions?

         15                 I just have one comment. First, thank

         16  you for your testimony. It has been enlightening. I

         17  just want to advise you that the Committee will be

         18  taking up the issue of the third anniversary of the

         19  EMS merger in the next few months, and I would

         20  appreciate it if the response time statistics that

         21  the Department has usually provided in the past be

         22  forwarded to the Committee prior to the hearing so

         23  we can have an opportunity --

         24                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Okay.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Mr. Chairman,
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          2  if this Committee -- and I have no problems because

          3  I am a member, and I am willing to go along with it,

          4  as we prepare for this hearing, let me just raise

          5  the concern that I have spoken to Commissioner Von

          6  Essen, and I am trying to work with him, that is

          7  this constant accusation of other ambulances other

          8  than EMS ambulances being routed so that the

          9  voluntary ambulance are taking patients away from

         10  our municipal hospitals and in this managed care,

         11  health care dilemma we lose money. So, as we are

         12  going to deal with it I have no problem dealing with

         13  it, I have too much respect for you, sir, to do it

         14  in this Committee, but as you deal with that,

         15  Commissioner, maybe as we move along maybe we can

         16  start dealing with that issue about this accusation

         17  that EMS ambulances that would normally take

         18  patients to HHC facilities are being routed to

         19  voluntary hospitals which means the the

         20  reimbursement we lose?

         21                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: I think that

         22  we met with HHC just the other day talking about

         23  this issue and took them through a lot of this

         24  anecdotal information that they had. They are now

         25  looking at all of our numbers and all of our
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          2  statistics and they are going to get back to us.

          3                 If you want, we will make that same

          4  presentation to you, if you want, and you can see if

          5  there is anything to it, in your view anyway.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: I would like that

          7  information as well.

          8                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         10  much for your testimony.

         11                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: This concludes

         13  the portion of the Fire Department Executive Budget

         14  hearing.

         15                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Thanks.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 10:50 a.m.)
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